Case 3:06-cv-00267-GEB-TJB  Document 333-4  Filed 10/17/2008 Page 1 of 67

Herring, et al. v. Hewitt Associates LLC

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, RELEASE & WAIVER

This Settlement Agreement, Release and Waiver (“Agreement”) is made this 17th day of
October 2008, by and between Carol Herring (“Herring”), Angela Bryant, Allison F. Toth,
Melissa Frye, Catherine Cerda and Tammy Wesley, on behalf of themselves, the classes they
purport to represent, their agents, representatives, assignees, heirs, executors, beneficiaries and
trustees (collectively, “Plaintiffs”) and Hewitt Associates LLC, on behalf of itself, its parents,
divisions, subsidiaries, predecessors and successors, and its and their directors, officers,
members, fiduciaries, insurers, employees, attorneys and agents (collectively, “Hewitt” or the
“Company”) (Hewitt and Plaintiffs are collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”).

WHEREAS, Herring commenced litigation in the U.S. District Court for the District of
New Jersey (the “Court™) captioned Herring, et al. v. Hewitt Associates, Inc., Civil Action No.
2006-00267 (the “Action”), in which she asserted claims under the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29
U.S.C. 8§ 201, et seq. (“FLSA”), and the New Jersey Wage Payment Law, N.J. Stat. Ann. tit. 34
ch. 11, arising out of alleged failure to pay overtime compensation for hours worked in excess of
forty per workweek; and

WHEREAS, Angela Bryant had previously commenced a similar action in the U.S.
District Court for the Northern District of California captioned Byrant, et al. v. Hewitt
Associates, LLC, Civil Action No. C-05-2976, and later voluntarily dismissed that case and
joined the Action as a party plaintiff on or about May 10, 2006; and

WHEREAS, Herring and her counsel, including the law firms of the Klafter Olsen &
Lesser LLP; Berger & Gottlieb; Grady, Schneider & Newman LLP; and Schneider Wallace
Cottrell Brayton Konecky LLP (collectively, “Class Counsel”), purported to bring the claims
asserted in the Action as a collective action pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) and as a class action
pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P. 23 on behalf of Herring and other current and former employees who
worked for Hewitt as Benefits Analysts; and

WHEREAS, the Court dismissed Herring’s claims under New Jersey Law from the
Action on or about August 11, 2006; and

WHEREAS, the Court conditionally certified Herring’s FLSA claim as a collective
action and directed that notice of the pendency of the Action be directed to members of the
conditionally certified class; and

WHEREAS approximately 228 individuals filed consents to join the Action as parties
plaintiff asserting FLSA claims against Hewitt; and



Case 3:06-cv-00267-GEB-TJB  Document 333-4  Filed 10/17/2008 Page 2 of 67

Herring, et al. v. Hewitt Associates LLC
CONFIDENTIAL
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, RELEASE & WAVIER

WHEREAS, Class Counsel filed putative class action complaints in or about April 2008
(collectively, the “State Law Cases”) captioned:

Frye, et al. v. Hewitt Associates, LLC, et al., California Superior Court for Los Angeles
County, Case No. BC388921 (asserting claims for alleged violations of the California
Labor Code, IWC Wage Orders, and California Business and Professions Code); and

Toth, et al. v. Hewitt Associates, Inc., New Jersey Superior Court for Somerset County,
docket no. SOM-L-609-08 (asserting claims for alleged violations of the New Jersey
Wage Payment Law); and

Wesley, et al. v. Hewitt Associates, LLC, Illinois Circuit Court for Cook County, docket
no. 08-CH-14873 (asserting claims for alleged violations of the Illinois Minimum Wage
Law, 820 ILCS 105/4a); and

WHEREAS, Hewitt denies that it has committed any wrongdoing or violated any state or
federal law pertaining to payment of wages or hours of work and has vigorously defended the
claims asserted in the Action and the State Law Cases; and

WHEREAS, in order to avoid the expense and burden of further litigation, the Parties
desire to resolve (i) any and all claims that were or could have been asserted under the FLSA on
behalf of Benefits Analysts in Job Codes 1445, 1446 and 1447 (collectively referred to as
“Benefits Analysts™) who submit written consents to join the Action prior to the Final Approval
of the Parties’ settlement; and (ii) any and all claims that were or could have been asserted based
on the allegations against Hewitt under state laws relating to the payment of wages, including
without limitation overtime pay claims, on behalf of any and all individuals who worked for
Hewitt as Benefits Analysts in the states of California, Illinois, New Jersey, Connecticut,
Pennsylvania, New York and Wisconsin during the applicable statute of limitations period in
each state (collectively, “Overtime Pay Claims”); and

WHEREAS, Hewitt represents that the Settlement Classes as defined in Section 4 include
approximately one thousand one hundred (1,100) individuals, in the aggregate;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual
promises hereinafter set forth, the Parties agree as follows:

1. No Admission of Liability. Hewitt expressly denies any wrongdoing or any violation of
state or federal law as alleged in the Action and in the State Law Cases. Nothing
contained in this Agreement shall be construed as an admission of any liability by any
Party, and all Parties agree not to offer this Agreement as evidence or otherwise use it in
any judicial or administrative proceeding, except that this Agreement may be introduced
in any proceeding for the sole purpose of enforcing its terms.
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2. Approval of Settlement.

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

All terms of this Agreement are contingent upon the approval of the Parties’
settlement and certification by the Court of the Settlement Classes (as defined in
Section 4 below) for settlement purposes only.

Q) For purposes of this Agreement, “Preliminary Approval” shall be deemed
to occur upon the issuance of a Court order conditionally certifying the
Settlement Classes specified in Section 4 for purposes of providing notice
to the affected individuals as described in Section 10(a).

(i) If the Court grants an order (w) finally and unconditionally granting the
Parties” motion for approval of their settlement, (x) granting final
certification of the Settlement Classes specified in Section 4 for settlement
purposes only, (y) authorizing payments to Class Counsel and members of
the Settlement Classes as specified in Sections 6 and 10, and (z) fully and
finally extinguishing claims against Hewitt as specified in Section 12,
“Final Approval” shall be deemed to occur (A) thirty-five (35) days after
the issuance such order, if no appeal of said order is filed within that 35-
day period, or (B) upon the final disposition of any appeal that has the
effect of affirming the order in its entirety.

(ili)  The Parties agree to cooperate and take all steps necessary and appropriate
to obtain Preliminary Approval and Final Approval of their settlement, to
effectuate all aspects of this Agreement, and to dismiss the Action and the
State Law Cases with prejudice.

Hewitt does not waive, and instead expressly reserves, its right to challenge the
propriety of class certification for any purpose as if this Agreement had not been
entered into by the Parties in the event that the Court does not certify the
Settlement Classes for settlement purposes only.

The Parties and their counsel agree that they will, contemporaneously with their
execution of this Agreement, execute a copy of the Joint Motion For Approval of
Settlement attached as Exhibit 1 (the *“Joint Motion”), seeking Preliminary
Approval of their proposed settlement. Hewitt agrees that it will file the Joint
Motion with the Court within seven (7) days after both Parties have executed this
Agreement and the Joint Motion.

The Parties agree that if the Court does not approve any material term in the
Parties’ Joint Motion or requires as a condition to granting the Joint Motion any
term that effects a material change in this Agreement, then this Agreement may be
voided at either Party’s option. The Parties further agree that Hewitt being
required to pay any amount greater than the amount specified in Section 5 shall be
deemed a material change. The Parties further agree that any ruling that the Court
may make regarding Class Counsel’s motion or petition for an award of attorneys’
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(€)

fees and costs pursuant to Section 6 shall not constitute a material change in this
Agreement, unless such award has the effect of increasing the total amount Hewitt
must pay in complete settlement of all claims addressed by this Agreement.

In conjunction with the filing of the Joint Motion, the Parties will jointly request
that the Court hold a fairness hearing regarding the Parties’ request for approval
of their proposed settlement not less than one hundred (100) days after the filing
of the Joint Motion. Counsel for the Parties will communicate with the Clerk of
the Court and make any further filings necessary to secure the approval of their
request.

3. Amendment to Complaint.

()

(b)

Within five (5) business days after the execution of this Agreement, Class
Counsel shall file pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P. 15(a)(2) and with Hewitt’s written
consent an Amended Complaint in the Action in the form attached as Exhibit 2.
The Parties acknowledge that the Amended Complaint is intended to be identical
in substance to the original Complaint filed in the Action, except that it adds all
claims asserted in the State Law Cases and adds putative class action Overtime
Pay Claims under the laws of Connecticut, Pennsylvania, New York and
Wisconsin.

The Parties hereby stipulate and agree that Hewitt shall not be required to serve or
file a responsive pleading in response to the Amended Complaint until after the
Court makes a final ruling on the Parties’ Joint Motion. If, for any reason, (i) the
Court denies the Parties’ request for Preliminary Approval, or (ii) the Parties’
settlement does not receive Final Approval within one hundred twenty (120) days
after Preliminary Approval or another date stipulated by the parties and/or set by
the Court in connection with the Parties’ request for settlement approval, Class
Counsel shall withdraw the Amended Complaint without prejudice. In the event
that Class Counsel withdraws the Amended Complaint pursuant to this paragraph,
no Party shall argue that Hewitt’s consent to the filing of the Amended Complaint
or Class Counsel’s withdrawal of the Amended Complaint has any bearing on the
merits of any subsequent motion or effort to amend the operative complaint in the
Action.

4. Settlement Classes.

(a)

(b)

The Federal Subclass shall include all individuals who have filed consents to join
the Action (including without limitation all individuals who timely return a Claim
Form containing a consent to join the Action) as of Preliminary Approval in any
state in the United States and who worked for Hewitt as Benefits Analysts within
the three (3) years prior to filing their consent to join the Action.

The State Subclass shall include all individuals employed as Benefits Analysts for
Hewitt:
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(©)

Q) In California at any time from April 11, 2004, through Preliminary
Approval;

(i) In Connecticut at any time from June 17, 2006, through Preliminary
Approval;

(iii)  InHlinois at any time from April 22, 2005, through Preliminary Approval;

(iv)  In New Jersey at any time from April 15, 2006, through Preliminary
Approval;

(V) In New York at any time from June 17, 2002, through Preliminary
Approval;

(vi)  InPennsylvania at any time from June 17, 2005, through Preliminary
Approval; and

(vii)  In Wisconsin at any time from June 17, 2006, through Preliminary
Approval.

In the event that, for any reason, the Parties’ settlement does not receive Final
Approval, the Court’s certification of the Settlement Classes, including the two
subclasses listed above, shall be void, of no effect, and shall not be used for any
purpose whatsoever in any further proceeding(s) in any of the above-referenced
lawsuits or in any other lawsuit asserting the same or similar claims and causes of
action.

5. Settlement Payment.

()

(b)

Hewitt agrees to pay a total sum not to exceed Four Million Nine-Hundred
Thousand Dollars $4,900,000.00 (the “Total Settlement Amount”) in order to
fully and finally resolve the Overtime Pay Claims in their entirety, inclusive of all
attorneys’ fees and costs; interest; litigation and settlement administration costs;
liquidated, punitive and multiple damages; and plaintiffs’ premiums, if any.
Hewitt will be responsible for state and federal taxes imposed on it by law as an
employer as a result of payments made to members of the Settlement Classes
under this Agreement, but Hewitt shall not be responsible for any taxes imposed
by law on the members of the Settlement Classes or any other sums in excess of
the Total Settlement Amount.

The total amount Hewitt shall pay in settlement of the Overtime Pay Claims shall
be reduced by the Claim Amount (as defined in Section 10(c)) of any member of
any of the Settlement Classes who elects to be excluded from the Parties’
settlement.
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(©

(d)

The Net Settlement Amount shall be the Total Settlement Amount, less: (i) any
attorneys’ fees and litigation costs awarded to Class Counsel pursuant to Section
6, (ii) any service payment awarded to Named Plaintiffs Carol Herring, Angela
Bryant, Melissa Frye, Catherine Cerda, Allison Toth and Tammy Wesley; (iii) the
Administrative Costs of the settlement as defined in Section 8(b), (iv) and
reductions for any individuals who seek to be excluded from the settlement as
described in the preceding paragraph.

Any portion of the Net Settlement Amount that is unclaimed by members of the
Settlement Classes who have failed timely to return a Claim Form as required by
Section 10(b) or failed to cash a check within the time period allotted under
Section 10(e)(i) shall be transferred to the American Red Cross Disaster Relief
Fund (the “Cy Pres Beneficiary”).

Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.

(a)

(b)

Class Counsel may petition the Court for an award of attorneys’ fees and costs in
conjunction with the Parties’ settlement. Any such petition shall be filed no later
than twenty-eight (28) days prior to the date of the final approval hearing.

Any attorneys’ fees and costs awarded in conjunction with the Parties’ settlement
shall be paid from the Total Settlement Amount and shall reduce the quantity of
the Net Settlement Amount payable to members of the Settlement Classes
pursuant to Section 10. Hewitt will take no position on any request by Class
Counsel for an award of fees and costs that does not exceed thirty-three percent
(33%) of the Total Settlement Amount plus actual costs.

Service Payments to Named Plaintiffs

(a)

(b)

Class Counsel may petition for an award of service payments to the Named
Plaintiffs. Any such petition shall be filed no later than twenty-eight (28) days
prior to the date of the final approval hearing.

Any service payments to the Named Plaintiffs awarded in conjunction with the
Parties’ settlement shall be paid from the Total Settlement Amount and shall
reduce the quantity of the Net Settlement Amount payable to other members of
the Settlement Classes pursuant to Section 10. Any service payments awarded to
the Named Plaintiffs shall be in addition to payments that the Named Plaintiffs
shall receive as members of the Settlement Classes pursuant to Section 10. Any
such service payments awarded by the Court shall be distributed by the Settlement
Administrator in separate checks mailed contemporaneously with the mailing of
checks pursuant to Section 10(e) and shall be reported to state and federal taxing
authorities as non-wage income on IRS Form 1099. Hewitt will take no position
on any request by Class Counsel for service payments to the Named Plaintiffs up
to the following amounts:
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(i) Carol Herring: $7,500
(i)  Angela Bryant: $7,500
(iii)  Melissa Frye: $2,000
(iv)  Catherine Cerda: $2,000
(v)  Allison Toth: $2,000

(vi)  Tammy Wesley: $2,000

Settlement Administrator.

(a)

(b)

The Parties shall jointly retain Rust Consulting, Inc. (“Rust” or the
“Administrator”) to serve as the administrator of the settlement and perform
services including without limitation dissemination of notices to eligible class
members, distribution of awards from the Net Settlement Amount to eligible class
members, tax reporting related to settlement, and providing notices of the Parties’
settlement to governmental authorities as required by law.

All costs of administering the Parties’ settlement, including all fees and costs paid
to the Settlement Administrator, shall be paid from the Total Settlement Amount
and shall reduce the quantity of the Net Settlement Amount payable to members
of the Settlement Classes. The Parties shall instruct Rust to prepare a binding
estimate of fees and costs for all services to be provided in conjunction with the
Parties’ settlement and this Agreement (the “Administrative Costs”) prior to the
filing of the Joint Motion. The Parties shall authorize Rust to disburse the amount
of the Administrative Costs to itself from the monies on deposit in the Escrow
Account as defined in Section 10(c) upon Final Approval.

Notices Mandated by Statute.

(a)

(b)

(©

Upon the filing of the Joint Motion pursuant to Section 2(c), the Parties will
instruct the Settlement Administrator to mail notices of the Parties’ proposed
settlement to an “Appropriate Federal Official” and “Appropriate State Officials”
(collectively, “Government Officials”) as required by 28 U.S.C. § 1715.

Hewitt shall prepare the notices referenced in the preceding Section, which shall
include as exhibits the Joint Motion, this Agreement, and all Complaints filed in
the Action. Such mailings shall also include information regarding the portion of
the Net Settlement Amount that the Parties anticipate would be distributed to
individuals living in each state upon Final Approval of the Parties’ settlement.

The mailings described in this Section shall not be subject to the non-disclosure
obligations in Section 11, and neither Party shall be deemed in breach of those
non-disclosure obligations as a result of the Settlement Administrator’s mailing of
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such materials to the Government Officials or as a result of any disclosures of
made by Government Officials regarding such mailings.

10. Distribution of Net Settlement Amount.

(a)

(b)

Mailing of Notices. Within fourteen (14) days after the Court grants Preliminary
Approval of the Parties’ proposed settlement, the Parties shall instruct the
Settlement Administrator to compile and mail to members of the Settlement
Classes packets containing a notice of the Parties’ proposed settlement in the form
attached as Exhibit 3 and a Claim Form in the form attached as Exhibit 4. The
Settlement Administrator shall send such packets by certified U.S. Mail to each
member of each of the Settlement Classes at such individuals’ last known address
as provided by Hewitt, after conducting reasonable address verification efforts
consistent with the customary practices in the settlement administration industry.
Forty-five (45) days after this initial mailing, the Settlement Administrator shall
perform a second mailing of the Settlement Classes packets to any class member
who has not submitted a Claim Form or Request for Exclusion.

Claim Form. The Claim Form to be distributed in conjunction with the Parties’
settlement shall denote that the individual returning the form consents to become
a party plaintiff in the Action, authorizes counsel to file with the Court the Claim
Form containing the individual’s written consent, and releases all Overtime Pay
Claims against Hewitt.

Q) In order to be valid and effective, a Claim Form must be signed, dated,
and postmarked or otherwise returned to the Settlement Administrator
within sixty-five (65) days after the first mailing of the Settlement Classes
Packets by the Settlement Administrator described in Section 10(a). Upon
receipt of an unsigned, untimely, incomplete or altered form, the
Settlement Administrator shall apprise the individual who returned the
form of its deficiency and provide such individual with a substitute form
that the individual may use to cure the deficiency within twenty (20) days.
A Claim Form that remains unsigned, untimely, incomplete or altered after
the sixty-five (65) day time period set forth herein shall be void, absent a
showing of good cause made more than ten (10) days prior to the date of
the final approval hearing. The Parties agree to allow the Settlement
Administrator to resolve any challenges regarding the validity of any
Claim Form made pursuant to this Section and to make a final and binding
determination on all issues presented by any such challenges without
hearing or right of appeal.

(i) Any member of the State Subclass who (y) does not return a Claim Form
to the Settlement Administrator in compliance with the preceding
paragraph, and (z) does not seek to be excluded from the Parties’
settlement prior to the date of the Court order resulting in Final Approval,
shall be deemed to release all Overtime Pay Claims against Hewitt as
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(©)

(d)

described in Section 12(a) and shall be deemed to have waived any right
to receive a payment in conjunction with the Parties’ settlement.

(i) Any member of any of the Federal Subclass who (y) has filed a consent to
join the Action prior to Preliminary Approval, and (z) does not return a
Claim Form to the Settlement Administrator in compliance with the
Section 10(b)(i), shall be deemed to release all Overtime Pay Claims
against Hewitt as described in Section 12(a) and 12(b) and shall receive a
payment by mail to his or her last known address or an address of Class
Counsel’s designation.

(iv)  Upon the expiration of the 65-day period in which members of the
Settlement Classes may return Claim Forms, the Settlement Administrator
shall compile and transmit the Claim Forms it has received to Class
Counsel (with a copy of all such materials to counsel for Hewitt), and
Class Counsel shall within fourteen (14) days thereafter file such Claim
Forms with the Court as notices of consents to join the Action on behalf of
the individuals who timely have returned valid claim forms.

Funding of Settlement Account. Within fourteen (14) days after Preliminary
Approval, Hewitt shall pay funds in the amount of the Total Settlement Amount
into an interest-bearing account under the control of the Settlement Administrator
and designated as a Qualified Settlement Fund pursuant to the Internal Revenue
Code (the “Escrow Account”) to be held in escrow pending Final Approval.

Q) The principal and interest in the Escrow Account shall be returned to
Hewitt immediately if, for any reason, the Parties’ settlement does not
receive Final Approval within one hundred twenty (120) days after
Preliminary Approval, or another date set by stipulation of the Parties
and/or order of the Court in connection with the Parties’ request for
settlement approval.

(i) Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, the funds specified in Section
10(c) shall remain in the Escrow Account pending the disposition of any
appeal of any order granting Preliminary Approval of the Parties’
settlement. All funds in the Escrow Account shall be returned to Hewitt
if, for any reason, the Parties’ settlement does not receive Final Approval
within one hundred twenty (120) days after the disposition of any such
appeal, unless another date is set by stipulation of the Parties.

Calculation of Individual Awards. The Total Settlement Amount, less (i) any
attorneys’ fees and costs awarded to Class Counsel by the Court pursuant to
Section 6, (ii) any service payments awarded to Named Plaintiffs by the Court
pursuant to Section 7, and (iii) the Administrative Costs described in Section 8(b),
shall be designated the “Distribution Fund.” The Weekly Payment shall be the
total number of full workweeks worked by all members of the Settlement Classes
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()

(f)

(9)

as Benefits Analysts during the period between January 19, 2003 and August 30,
2008 (the “Settlement Period”), divided by the amount of the Distribution Fund.
Each member of the Settlement Classes who timely returns a compliant Claim
Form shall be eligible to receive an award in the amount of the Weekly Payment
multiplied by the number of full workweeks which he or she worked for Hewitt as
a Benefits Analyst during the Settlement Period (his or her “Claim Amount”).

Payments to Class Members. Within fourteen (14) days after Final Approval, the
Settlement Administrator shall transfer all funds in the Escrow Account into a
distribution account and mail checks drawn on that account in the Claim Amount,
less applicable taxes and withholdings, to each member of each of the Settlement
Classes who has timely returned a Claim Form.

Q) Checks issued pursuant to the preceding paragraph shall expire ninety (90)
days after they are issued, but a failure by a member of any of the
Settlement Classes to deposit or cash a check within the time period
allotted shall have no effect on that individual’s release of claims pursuant
to Section 12.

(i) The Settlement Administrator shall withhold from payments to
participating members of the Settlement Classes taxes and other sums as
required by state or federal law. The Parties agree that fifty percent (50%)
of the award paid to each participating member of the Settlement Classes
shall be treated as wages, and the remaining fifty percent (50%) shall be
treated as liquidated or statutory damages for tax purposes.

(iii)  The payment of any awards to participating members of the Settlement
Classes shall have no impact on their entitlement to or receipt of any
benefits under any Hewitt policy, practice, or welfare or benefit plan; or,
as allowable by law, to their entitlement or receipt of workers
compensation benefits or unemployment compensation.

Return of Claim Amounts for Opt-Outs. For each member of the Settlement
Classes who seeks to be excluded from the Parties’ settlement prior to the Court
order resulting in Final Approval, the Claim Amount for that individual shall
revert to Hewitt. The Settlement Administrator shall transfer to Hewitt the
aggregate of all Claim Amounts that revert to the Company pursuant to this
paragraph, along with all interest earned on such Claim Amounts while on deposit
in the Escrow Account, within fourteen (14) days after Final Approval.

Transfer of Remainder to Cy Pres Beneficiary. One hundred twenty (120) days
after Final Approval, the Settlement Administrator shall transfer all remaining
funds it holds pertaining to the Parties’ settlement or this Agreement to the Cy
Pres Beneficiary as designated in Section 5(d). The funds transferred to the Cy
Pres Beneficiary shall include: (i) the aggregate of all Claim Amounts forfeited by
members of the Settlement Classes who do not timely return Claim Forms as
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specified in Section 10(b); (ii) the aggregate of all Claim Amounts corresponding
to checks that expire pursuant to Section 10(e)(i); and (iii) all interest accrued on
the funds deposited into the Escrow Account. The Final Distribution of Funds
shall be deemed to have occurred upon the transfer of funds to the Cy Pres
Beneficiary pursuant to this paragraph.

11. Non-Disclosure.

()

(b)

()

(d)

Plaintiffs, Hewitt, and counsel for the respective Parties agree not to disclose or
publicize this settlement or its terms and conditions and to continue to be bound
by the Protective Order entered by the Court in the Action as docket entry 325. In
promotional materials regarding their law firms or legal practices, Class Counsel
may represent that they settled a wage and hour case for $4.9 million, so long as
such materials do not identify any of the Parties, the Action, any of the State
Court Cases, or provide any information that would enable a recipient of the
materials to determine that the settlement involved Hewitt. Nothing in this
Agreement shall prohibit any Party from responding with truthful information to
any disparaging statement regarding the Parties or the settlement made in any
print or electronic media outlet. Hewitt also may respond to inquiries from media
outlets regarding the settlement by stating, in substance, that the company denies
any liability in the action and settled the case in order to avoid the burden of
continued litigation.

No Party or counsel for any Party shall take any action that has the purpose or
foreseeable effect of recruiting, inducing or encouraging additional individuals
who are not members of one or more of the Settlement Classes as of the date of
this Agreement to join the Action.

No Party or counsel for any Party shall disclose, acknowledge or make any
statement of any kind about the fact of the settlement of the Action, the terms or
substance of the settlement, or any position or statement made during mediation
or settlement discussions, except as may be required to secure Preliminary
Approval and Final Approval and for the purposes noted in Section 11(a). The
Parties shall agree in advance as to the content of any statement regarding the
settlement to be submitted in conjunction with any request for approval of the
settlement.

No Party or counsel for a Party shall post or maintain any information regarding
the settlement or this Agreement on any internet accessible medium, including
without limitation any website. Notwithstanding this restriction, Class Counsel
may post on websites maintained by their law firms a copy of the notice issued by
the Settlement Administrator pursuant to Section 10(a) for a period not to exceed
sixty-five (65) days after Rust mails such materials to members of the Settlement
Classes as specified in that Section. Any information that Class Counsel posts on
their law firms’ websites in accordance with this paragraph shall not include the
Claim Form, but Class Counsel may include contact information that members of
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()

the Settlement Classes can use to contact Rust to request a notice packet including
all forms specified in Section 10(a).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall prevent Class Counsel from
communicating with members of the Settlement Classes about the Parties’
settlement or the Agreement, and nothing herein shall prevent Hewitt from
communicating with its employees on any subject.

12. Releases.

(a)

(b)

Upon Final Approval, all members of each of the Settlement Classes shall be
deemed to fully, forever, irrevocably and unconditionally release, remise, and
discharge Hewitt Associates LLC, its parents, divisions, subsidiaries, predecessors
and successors, and its and their directors, officers, members, fiduciaries, insurers,
employees, attorneys and agents (each in their individual and corporate
capacities) (collectively referred to as the “Released Parties”), from any and all
suits, actions, causes of action, claims, or demands against the Released Parties or
any of them based on putative violations of any state or local law pertaining to
hours of work or payment of wages, including without limitation all claims that
were asserted or could have been asserted in the Action or the State Law Cases,
based on the allegations in them, regarding events that occurred or are alleged to
have occurred from the beginning of time until the date of the Court order
resulting in Final Approval.

Upon Final Approval, all individuals who join the Action as members of the
Federal Subclass (including without limitation all individuals who timely return a
Claim Form containing a consent to join the Action pursuant to Section 10(b))
shall be deemed to fully, forever, irrevocably and unconditionally release, remise,
and discharge the Released Parties, from any and all suits, actions, causes of
action, claims, or demands against the Released Parties or any of them based on
putative violations of federal law pertaining to hours of work or payment of
wages, including without limitation all claims that were asserted or could have
been asserted in the Action under the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201,
et seq., based on events that occurred or are alleged to have occurred from the
beginning of time until the date of the Court order resulting in Final Approval.

13. Dismissal of Actions.

()

(b)

Within five (5) business days of the execution of this Agreement, Class Counsel
shall file notices of dismissal without prejudice of each of the State Law Cases,
with Hewitt’s written consent to the extent required by the governing procedural
rules.

Within five (5) business days of Final Approval, Class Counsel shall file a
dismissal of the Action with Hewitt’s written consent pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P.
41(a)(1)(A)(i1). The dismissal of the Action shall be with prejudice and without

Page 12 of 15
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Herring, et al. v. Hewitt Associates LLC
CONFIDENTIAL
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, RELEASE & WAVIER

14.

15.

16.

17.

costs, waiving all rights of appeal, with the Court retaining jurisdiction over the
case for purpose of ensuring compliance with the terms of the Parties’ settlement.

Termination of Settlement Agreement. If greater than ten percent (10%) of all
members of the Settlement Classes, in the aggregate, seek to be excluded from the
Parties’ settlement, this Agreement shall be voidable at Hewitt’s option. If Hewitt
exercises its option to void the Agreement pursuant to this paragraph, the Agreement
shall be null and void and of no effect whatsoever. By signing this Agreement, each of
the Plaintiffs agrees that he or she will not seek to be excluded from the Parties’
settlement under any circumstances.

Non-Waiver. No delay or omission by either Party in exercising any right under this
Agreement shall operate as a waiver of that or any other right. A waiver or consent given
by a Party on any one occasion shall be effective only in that instance and shall not be
construed as a bar or waiver of any right on any other occasion.

Complete Agreement. Other than as stated herein, the Parties warrant that no
representation, promise, or inducement has been offered or made to induce any Party to
enter into this Agreement and that they are competent to execute this Agreement and
accept full responsibility therefore. This Agreement contains and constitutes the entire
understanding and agreement between the Parties and supersedes all previous oral and
written negotiations, agreements, commitments, and writings in connection therewith.
This Agreement may not be amended or modified except by a writing signed by
authorized representatives of all Parties.

Knowing and Voluntary Agreement. Plaintiffs and Class Counsel each agree that they
are entering into this Agreement knowingly, voluntarily, and with full knowledge of its
significance. Plaintiffs further affirm that none of them have been coerced threatened, or
intimidated into signing this Agreement; that they have been advised to consult with an
attorney; and that each of them in fact has consulted with an attorney before signing this
Agreement. Class Counsel represents that they have conducted a thorough investigation
into the facts of the Action and have diligently pursued an investigation of the Overtime
Pay Claims asserted on behalf of members of the Settlement Classes against Hewitt.
Based on their own independent investigation and evaluation, Class Counsel state that
they are of the opinion that the settlement with the Company is fair, reasonable, and
adequate and is in the best interest of the members of the Settlement Classes, in light of
all known facts and circumstances, including the risks of significant delay and defenses
asserted by Hewitt.

Page 13 of 15
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Herring, et al. v. Hewitt Associates LLC
CONFIDENTIAL
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, RELEASE & WAVIER

18. Notices. Any notices issued pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be sent to the
Parties at the addresses of their respective counsel as follows.

For Plaintiffs and Members of the For Hewitt to:

Settlement Classes to: Richard L. Alfred, Esq.
Seth Lesser, Esq. Seyfarth Shaw LLP
Klafter Olsen & Lesser LLP 2 Seaport Lane, Suite 300
1311 Mamaroneck Avenue Boston, MA 02210
Suite 220 Ph: 617/946-4800
White Plains, NY 10605 Fax: 617/946-4801
Ph: 914/997-5656 ralfred@seyfarth.com
Fax: 914/997-2444
seth.lesser@klafterolsen.com Timothy M. Watson, Esq.

Seyfarth Shaw LLP
Todd M. Schneider, Esq. 700 Louisiana Street, Suite 3700
Schneider Wallace Cottrell Brayton Houston , TX 77002-2797
Konecky LLP Ph: 713/225-2300
180 Montgomery Street, Ste 2000 Fax: 713/ 225-2340
San Francisco, CA 94104 twatson@seyfarth.com

Ph: 415.421.7100
Fax: 415.421.7105

19.  Severability. If any part of this Agreement is found to be illegal, invalid, inoperative or
unenforceable in law or equity, such finding shall not affect the validity of any other
provisions of this Agreement, which shall be construed, reformed and enforced to effect
the purposes thereof to the fullest extent permitted by law. If one or more of the
provisions contained in the Agreement shall for any reason be held to be excessively
broad in scope, subject matter or otherwise, so as to be unenforceable at law, the Parties
agree that such provision(s) shall be construed to be limited or reduced so as to be
enforceable to the maximum extent under the applicable law.

~ Remainder of This Page Intentionally Left Blank ~
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Exhibit 1
Joint Motion for Approval of Settlement
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY

Seth R. Lesser, Esq. Richard L. Alfred
Fran Rudich, Esq. SEYFARTH SHAW LLP
KLAFTER OLSEN LESSER LLP Two Seaport Lane, Ste. 300

1311 Mamaroneck Avenue, Suite 220 Boston, MA 02210
White Plains, NY 10605

& Timothy M. Watson
132 Haddon Avenue SEYFARTH SHAW LLP
Haddonfield, NJ 08033 700 Louisiana Street, Ste. 3700

Houston , TX 77002-2797
Jeffrey Gottlieb, Esq.

BERGER & GOTTLIEB Scott A. Ohnegian (SO-4799)
150 East 18 Street, Suite PHR RIKER, DANZIG, SCHERER, HYLAND&
New York, NY 1003 PERRETTI LLP

Headquarters Plaza, One Speedwell Ave.
Todd Schneider, Esqg. Morristown, NJ 07962-1981

Joshua Konecky, Esq.

Camilla Roberson, Esq.

SCHNEIDER WALLACE

COTTRELL BRAYTON KONECKY LLP
180 Montgomery Street, Ste 2000

San Francisco, CA 94104

Peter Schneider, Esq.

Keith Grady, Esq.

William Jones, Esq.

Doron Levin, Esq.

Grady, Schneider & Newman, LLP
801 Congress Street, Suite 400
Houston, Texas 77002

CAROL HERRING, ANGELA BRYANT,
ALLISON F. TOTH, MELISSA FRYE,
CATHERINE CERDA, TAMMY WESLEY,
Individually and on Behalf of All Other
Persons Similarly Situated,

NOTICE OF MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY
Plaintiffs, APPROVAL OF SETTLEMENT AND
PrROVISIONAL CERTIFICATION OF

Vs. SETTLEMENT CLASS

HEWITT ASSOCIATES, LLC,

Defendant.
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PLEASE TAKE NOTICE thabn November 21, 2008 at noon, the
undersigned counsel shall jointly move before the Honorable Magistrate Judge
Tonianne Bonjiovanni, or whoever may be sitting in her stead, in the United States
District Court for the District of New dgey, Trenton Vicinage, located in the
Clarkson S. Fisher Building and U.S. Ctwause, 402 East State Street Room 2020,
Trenton, New Jersey, for an order appngva proposed clasgtion settlement, and
the provisional certification of a settlement class, as detailed in the attached

Settlement Agreement annexed to the accompanying Declaration of Seth R. Lesser.
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PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that at the aforesaid time and place the

parties shall rely on the accompanyiMgmorandum of Law and the accompanying

Declaration of Seth R. Lesser, Esquire, vaghibits, in support of their motion.

Dated: October 17, 2008
ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFFS

/s/ Seth Lesser
Seth R. Lesser, Esq.
Fran Rudich, Esq.
KLAFTER OLSEN LESSER LLP
1311 Mamaroneck Avenue, Suite 220
White Plains, NY 10605
&
132 Haddon Avenue
Haddonfield, NJ 08033

Jeffrey Gottlieb, Esq.
BERGER & GOTTLIEB

150 East 18 Street, Suite PHR
New York, NY 1003

Todd Schneider, Esq.

Joshua Konecky, Esq.

Camilla Roberson, Esq.

SCHNEIDER WALLACE

COTTRELL BRAYTON KONECKY LLP
180 Montgomery Street, Ste 2000

San Francisco, CA 94104

Peter Schneider, Esq.

Keith Grady, Esq.

William Jones, Esq.

Doron Levin, Esq.

Grady, Schneider & Newman, LLP
801 Congress Street, Suite 400
Houston, Texas 77002

Respectfully submitted,

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANT
HEWITT ASSOCIATES, LLC

/s/ Richard L. Alfred
Richard L. Alfred
SEYFARTH SHAW LLP
Two Seaport Lane, Ste. 300
Boston, MA 02210

Timothy M. Watson
SEYFARTH SHAW LLP

700 Louisiana Street, Ste. 3700
Houston , TX 77002-2797

Scott A. Ohnegian (SO-4799)

RIKER, DANZIG, SCHERER, HYLAND
& PERRETTI LLP

Headquarters Plaza, One Speedwell Ave.
Morristown, NJ 07962-1981
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Exhibit 2
Amended Complaint
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Seth R. Lesser, Esq.

Fran Rudich, Esq.

KLAFTER OLSEN LESSER LLP
1311 Mamaroneck Avenue, Suite 220
White Plains, NY 10605

Jeffrey Gottlieb, Esq.
BERGER & GOTTLIEB

150 East 18 Street, Suite PHR
New York, NY 1003

Todd Schneider, Esqg.

Joshua Konecky, Esq.

Camilla Roberson, Esq.

SCHNEIDER WALLACE

COTTRELL BRAYTON KONECKY LLP
180 Montgomery Street, Ste 2000

San Francisco, CA 94104

Peter Schneider, Esq.

Keith Grady, Esq.

William Jones, Esq.

Doron Levin, Esq.

GRADY, SCHNEIDER & NEWMAN, LLP
801 Congress Street, Suite 400
Houston, Texas 77002

Filed 10/17/2008

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY
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CAROL HERRING, ANGELA BRYANT,
ALLISON F. TOTH, MELISSA FRYE,
CATHERINE CERDA, TAMMY WESLEY,
Individually and on Behalf of All Other
Persons Similarly Situated,

CONSOLIDATED AMENDED

Plaintiffs, COLLECTIVE AND CLASS ACTION

Vs.

HEWITT ASSOCIATES, INC,,

Defendant.

COMPLAINT AND JURY DEMAND

Docket No 3:06ev-00267-GEB-TJB
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Plaintiffs Carol Herring, Angel&ryant, Allison Toth, Joy Melissa Frye, Catherine Cerda, and
Tammy Wesley (“Plaintiffs™Jring this Consolidated Amended Collective Action and Class
Action Complaint against Defendant Hewitt Assdes, LLC (“Hewitt” or “Defendant”) and
allege the following upon information and belief:

INTRODUCTION

1. Plaintiffs bring this action against Hewitt for violations of the Fair Labor
Standards Act (“FLSA”), 29 U.S.C. 8204t seq, the California Labor Code and Industrial
Welfare Commission (“IWC”) Wage Orders, the Cadifia Unfair Business Practices Act, Cal.
Bus. & Prof. Code 88172061 seq, the Connecticut Minimum Vg Act, C.G.S.A. 8§88 31-58,
et seq.the lllinois Minimum Wage Law, 820 ILCS 105/ seq, the New Jersey Wage
Payment Law, N.J.S.A. 88 34:11-56alseq (“NJWPL"), the New York Labor Law, N.Y.
Lab. Law 88160et seq.and supporting regulations, Pennsylvania Wage Payment and
Collection Law, 43 P.S. 88260e? sq, Pennsylvania Minimum Wge Law, 13 P.S. 8§ 333.101
et seq.and the Wisconsin waged hour laws, W.S.A. 88103.026segand implementing
regulations.

2. Plaintiffs and other similarly situatl employees are current and former
employees of Hewitt who worked as Benefitsafysts and were not and are not exempt from
the overtime provisions of the FLS&alifornia state law, Connedctitstate law, lllinois state
law, New Jersey state law, New York state,|®ennsylvania statevla and Wisconsin state
law.

3. Plaintiffs allege on behalf of thenmges and all other similarly situated
employees that Hewitt willfully has engaged andtmues to engage in a policy and practice of
misclassifying Plaintiffs and the class as egefrom the overtime provisions of state and
federal law. This policy and practice resuht Defendant failing to pay class members
overtime compensation for overtime hours waokkand, thus, depriving the class of large

amounts of wages which they have edrard to which they are entitled.
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4. Plaintiffs allege on behalf of themselvasd all other similarly situated current
and former employees of the Defendant that #reyentitled to recovet.) unpaid wages from
Defendant for overtime work for which theyddiot receive overtime premium pay as required
by applicable state and federal laws, 2.) ligtedeand other damages as permitted by state and
federal laws; 3.) applicable civil penalties as permitted by state laws; and 4.) reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5. This Court has federal question jurisdictiin this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
81331 and 816(b) of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §216(b).

6. This Court has federal jurisdiction over this action pursuant to the jurisdictional
provisions of the Class Action ffaess Act, as codified at 28.S.C. 88 1332(d), because the
aggregate amount in controversy exceeds $5,000e@0ysive of interest and costs; the
aggregate number of all membaf all proposed plaintiff ctses exceeds 100 individuals; and
the case is a class action in which at least one ol@snber is a citizen af state different from
that of at least one Defendant.

7. This Court has supplemental jurisdictiover Plaintiffs’ California, Connecticut,
lllinois, New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvangmd Wisconsin subdda state-law claims
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 81367.

8. Venue is proper in this district pursuao 28 U.S.C. 81391(b) and (c). Members
of the federal class and state law subclassesder@siNew Jersey. Defendant Hewitt is licensed
to do business and is doing business in Neweyeend maintains two offices in New Jersey,
including one in this District.

PARTIES

9. Defendant Hewitt is a corporation egga in the business of providing human

resources outsourcing services to various businesses, including many large, multi-national

corporations. Defendant employs over 20,000 peopiéiaes in 35 countries. At all relevant
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times, Defendant has employed Benefits Analys perform primarily non-exempt data
processing and customer service tasks.

10.  Plaintiff Carol Herring is aesident of New Jersey and a former employee of
Hewitt. Plaintiff, within the reevant statutory period, worked fbiewitt as a Benefits Analyst.
She was primarily engaged in non-exempt gatessing and customer service tasks.

11. Plaintiff Angela Bryant is a resident ®&xas and a former employee of Hewitt.
Plaintiff, within the relevant statutory period, iked for Hewitt as a Benefits Analyst. She was
primarily engaged in non-exempt dat@gessing and customer service tasks.

12.  Plaintiff Joy Melissa Frye igesident of Californiarad is a former employee of
Hewitt. Plaintiff, within the reevant statutory period, worked fbiewitt as a Benefits Analyst.
She was primarily engaged in non-exempt gatessing and customer service tasks.

13.  Plaintiff Catherine Cerda is resident@élifornia and is a former employee of
Hewitt. Plaintiff, within the reevant statutory period, worked fbiewitt as a Benefits Analyst.
She was primarily engaged in non-exempt gatessing and customer service tasks.

14.  Plaintiff Allison F. Toth is a resident of New Jersey and a current employee of
Hewitt. Plaintiff within the relevant statutoperiod has been working for Hewitt as a Benefits
Analyst within the relevant atutory period. She has beemmarily engaged in nhon-exempt
data processing and customer service tasks.

15.  Plaintiff Tammy Wesley is resident of lllinois and is a former employee of
Hewitt. Plaintiff, within the reevant statutory period, worked fbiewitt as a Benefits Analyst.
She was primarily engaged in non-exempt gateessing and customer service tasks.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

16. The operations of Hewitt offices or locations, and the wages and compensation of
non-exempt employees at each of its officecations, are substantially similar, if not
identical.

17.  Atall relevant times herein, Defenddras employed Plaintiffs and members of

the federal class and state law subclasses adiBehealysts. Benefits Analysts have the
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primary duties of entering into computers andntaning payroll and hman resources data of
the employees of Defendant’s clients. Pléistnd members of the class and subclasses spent
or spend most, if not all, of threime performing non-exempt tasks.

18.  Plaintiffs and the members of the classl subclasses performed work that was in
the normal course of the Defendant’s busiraasswas integrated into the business of the
Defendant.

19. The work performed by Plaintiffs amdembers of the class and subclasses
required no capital investment and theinmary duties did not include managerial
responsibilities or the exercisé discretion and independenidgment with respect to matters
of significance.

20.  Plaintiffs and members of the class antddasses were required and expected to
perform work in excess of 40 haua week, and eight hours a day.

21. Defendant has a policy and practice of clgesy all Benefits Analysts as exempt
from the overtime requirements of federal aradestaws. Due to this policy, Defendant only
has paid Plaintiffs and the members of tressland subclasses a set amount each pay period
regardless of how many hours worked in that payod. This deprives Plaintiff and the class
and subclasses of overtime compensation fardhworked in excess of 40 in a week in
violation of the FLSA, Californiatate law, Connecticut state lalinois state law, New Jersey
state law, New York state law, Pennsyliastate law, and Wisconsin state law.

22.  Plaintiffs and the members of the £$aand subclasses were and are regularly
required to attend mandatory lunch meetings and were not permitted to take any off-duty meal
breaks. This policy and practideprives the California subclasstbé meal and rest periods to
which they are entitled by law.

23.  As aresult of Defendant’s policiesdapractices of failing to pay overtime
compensation, Defendant has also failed tontaan accurate and sufficient time records in

violation of the FLSA ad applicable state laws.
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24.  As aresult of Defendant’s policies apidictices, Defendant &dailed to provide
timely compensation to members of thibslasses during threémployment and upon
termination of their employment, inolation of applicable state laws.

25. Defendant’s unlawful conduct has been wsji®ad, repeated and consistent at
each of its locations.

26. Defendant knew or should have knowattlis policies and practices denied
Plaintiffs and the federal da and state law subclasses overteumpensation in violation of
the FLSA and applicable state laws.

27.  The conduct of Defendant, as set out abbes,been willful and in bad faith, and
has caused significant damages to the Pfanthe federal class and the subclasses.

ALLEGATIONS FOR CLASS AND COLLECTIVE ACTION

FLSA Collective Action:

28.  Plaintiffs bring the First Cause of Aan for violations of the FLSA as a
collective action pursant to 816(b) of the FLSA, 29 U.S.8216(b). Plaintiffs bring these
claims on behalf of all non-exempt Benefiisalyst employees of Hewitt, employed in job
codes 1445, 1446 and 1447, who have been miscéabbyi Hewitt as exempt from the FLSA,
and who were, are or will be employed fromidgrthe period of January 20, 2003 (three years
prior to the commencement of this action) tlylodhe date of final cotuapproval of the class
action settlement, who file consents to join #esion prior to the final Court approval of the
settlement, and who have not been fully compensated for all work performed, time spent, and
activities conducted for ehbenefit of Defendant.

29.  Plaintiffs’ claims for violations of thELSA may be broughtred maintained as an
“opt-in” collective action pursuartb 816(b) of the FLSA, for altlaims asserted by Plaintiffs
for the class, because the claims of Plaingfs similar to the claims of the members of the

class.
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30. Members of the class are similarly situhtas they have substantially similar job
requirements and provisions and are subjectctmnanon practice, policy @lan that requires
them to perform work in excess of 40 hearweek without overtime compensation.

State Law Class Action:

31. Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves aallothers similarly situated, bring the
remaining Causes of Action for violations ofli@ania, Connecticut, llnois, New Jersey, New
York, Pennsylvania, and Wiscansstate wage and hour laws class actions pursuant to
Fed.R.Civ.P. 23. The state law subclasses tlaatPis seek to represent are defined as

follows:

a. CALIFORNIA SUBCLASS
“all individuals employed aBenefits Analysts in
California at any time between April 11, 2004 and the
date of final court appwal of the class action
settlement.”

b. CONNECTICUT SUBCLASS
“all individuals employed aBenefits Analysts in
Connecticut at any time between June 17, 2006 and the
date of final court appwal of the class action
settlement.”

c. ILLINOIS SUBCLASS
“all individuals employed as Befits Analysts in lllinois
at any time between Aprd2, 2005 and the date of final
court approval of the class action settlement.”

d. NEWJERSEY SUBCLASS
“all individuals employed aBenefits Analysts in New
Jersey at any time April 15, 2006 and the date of final
court approval of the class action settlement.”

e. NEW YORK SUBCLASS
“all individuals employed aBenefits Analysts in New
York at any time between June 17, 2002 and the date of
final court approval of thelass action settlement.”
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f.

32.

PENNSYLVANIA SUBCLASS

“all individuals employed aBenefits Analysts in
Pennsylvania at any time between June 17, 2005 and the
date of final court appwal of the class action

settlement.”

WISCONSIN SUBCLASS

“all individuals employed aBenefits Analysts in
Wisconsin at any time between June 17, 2006 and the
date of final court appwal of the class action
settlement.”

This action has been brought and mayperly be maintained as a class action

under Fed.R.Civ.P. 23 as follows:

33.

Numerosity: The potential members of each subclass as defined are so numerous

that joinder of all the members of the class is impracticable.

34.

Commonality: There are questis of law and fact common to Plaintiffs and each

subclass that predominate over any questionstaffeonly individual members of the subclass.

These common questions of law aadtfinclude, without limitation:

a.

Whether the standard set of dutiesf@ened by Benefits Analysts are non-
exempt duties under the FLSd applicable state laws;

Whether Hewitt has violated and contisue violate applicable state wage

and hour laws;

Whether Hewitt has engaged in a contng policy, pattern or practice of
misclassifying Benefits Analysts as exanfrom the FLSA and/or applicable
state laws;

Whether Hewitt has failed to pay to Plaintiffs and members of the subclasses
overtime compensation for overtime hours worked;

Whether Hewitt has violated applicalstate laws by failing to pay Benefits
Analysts the wages owing and due them each pay day and upon termination or

quit;
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f.  Whether Hewitt's policies and practices were willful, knowing and with
intentional disregard for the members of the subclasses and applicable state
laws;

g. Whether Hewitt should be enjoined fr@ngaging in such practices in the
future.

35.  Typicality: Plaintiffs’ claims are typical ahe claims of thelass and subclasses.
Defendant’s common policy and course of condueiahation of the law as alleged herein has
caused Plaintiffs and membersatifthe subclasses to sustain the same or similar injuries and
damages. Plaintiffs’ claims are thereby represgere of and co-extensiwgith the claims of
the class and subclasses.

36. Adequacy: Plaintiffs will fairly and adeqtedy represent and protect the interests
of the members of the class and subclassesntffis have retained counsel competent and
experienced in complex emplaoent class action litigation.

37. Class certification of eaabf the Second through Twelfth Causes of Action is
appropriate pursuant to Fed.R/®. 23(b)(1) because the peasition of separate actions by
individual subclass members would create aoiskconsistent or varying adjudications which
would establish incompatible standards of conduct for Defendant, and/or because adjudications
with respect to individual subclass members wWa@d a practical matter be dispositive of the
interests of non-partsubclass members.

38. In addition, class certificeon of each of the Secortdrough Twelfth Causes of
Action is appropriate pursuatd Fed.R.Civ.P. 23(b)(2) becausefendant has acted or refused
to act on grounds generally applicable to emdbclass, making approgie both declaratory
and injunctive relief with resgrt to each subclass. The menshafreach subclass are entitled to
injunctive relief to end Defendant’'s commamdauniform practices of denying the subclass
overtime compensation, timely paymehtvages upon termination or quit.

39. Class certification of each subclassttoe Second through Twelfth Causes of

Action is appropriate pursuatd Fed.R.Civ.P. 23(b)(3) becauguestions of law and fact
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common to each subclass predominate over questions affecting only individual members of
each subclass, and because a class action is@upeother available methods for the fair and

efficient adjudication of this litigation.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure to Pay Overtime Wages in Violaion of Fair Labor Standards Act

40. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporateetforegoing paragraphs as though fully set
forth herein.

41. At all relevant times, Defendant has beand continues to be, an “employer”
engaged in interstate “commerce” and/orghaduction of “goods” for “commerce” within the
meaning of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §203. Atralevant times, Defendant has employed, and
continues to employ, “employee|[s]ricluding Plaintiffs and mendss of the Federal Subclass,
who have been, and continue to be, engagetenstate commercend/or the production of
goods for commerce.

42. At all relevant times, Defendant has@oyed and/or continues to employ to
Plaintiffs and each of the celitive action class members witlthe meaning of the FLSA.

43. At all relevant times, Defendant has enghgend continues to engage, in a willful
policy, pattern, or practice of classifying itsetiefit analyst” employees, including Plaintiffs
and members the Federal Subclass, as exieamptthe overtime provisions of the FLSA.

44.  As aresult, Defendant requires or pgsnlaintiffs and the members of the
Federal Subclass to work overtime howrthout paying them overtime compensation.

45. At no relevant time have the primary dstigf the Plaintiffs been exempt duties
requiring the exercise of distion and independent judgmavith respect to matters of
significance. No provision of law has exempRidintiffs and other Federal Subclass members
from the right to overtime pay.

46. Members of the Federal Subclass hawoeked overtime hours for Defendant

without being paid overtime prenms in violation of the FLSA.

10
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47.  As aresult, Defendant héaled to pay overtime compsation to Plaintiffs and
members of the Federal Subclass for all hours ik excess of forty each week, in violation
of the FLSA. Defendant has not fulfilled itsliglations to compensate members of the Federal
Subclass for all wages earned and all hounkeg including premion wages for overtime
work. As a result of the aforementionedlations, Defendant has damaged the class in
amounts to be determined according to proof at tntrial, but in an amount in excess of the
jurisdictional requirements of this Court.

48.  As aresult of Defendant’s willful failure to compensate its employees, including
Plaintiffs and the members of the Federal Subcktss rate not less thame and one-half times
the regular rate of pay for worked performeaexcess of forty hours in a workweek, the
Defendant has violated and continues toat®mthe FLSA, 29 U.S.&8201 et seq., including
29 U.S.C. 88207 and 215(a).

49.  Further, as a result of Defendant’s willfallure to record, report, credit and/or
compensate its non-exempt hourly employe&eployed as “benefit analysts,” including
Plaintiffs and members of the Federal Subksldefendant has faildo make, keep, and
preserve records with respect to each of itpleyees sufficient to determine the wages, hours,
and other conditions and practiecdemployment in violation of the FLSA, including 29 U.S.C.
§8211(c) and 215(a).

50. Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves ane& thederal Subclass, seek damages in the
amount of the respective unpaid overtime comspéan, plus liquidated damages, as provided
by the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §216(b), and such othgall@nd equitable reliefs the Court deems
just and proper.

51. Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and frederal Subclass, also seek recovery of
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs obadtiom Defendant, as provided by the FLSA, 29
U.S.C. §216(b).

52.  Wherefore, Plaintiffs and the Fedeflbclass request refias hereinafter

provided.
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SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure to Pay Overtime Wages in Violationof California Labor Code 88510 and 1194 and
IWC Wage Orders

53.  Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporateetforegoing paragraphs as though fully set
forth herein.

54.  California Labor Code 8510(a) provides as follows:

Eight hours of labor constitutes a day's woAay work in excess of eight hours in one
workday and any work in excess of 40 haarany one workweek and the first eight
hours worked on the seventh day of worlany one workweek shall be compensated at
the rate of no less than one and one-half tithesegular rate of pay for an employee.
Any work in excess of 12 hours in one day Ehalcompensated at the rate of no less
than twice the regular rate of pay for anpdogee. In addition, any work in excess of
eight hours on any seventh day of a workwslekll be compensated at the rate of no less
than twice the regular rate of pay of anpboyee. Nothing in this section requires an
employer to combine more than one ratewrtime compensation in order to calculate
the amount to be paid to an employee for any hour of overtime work.

55. The IWC Wage Order 4-2001(3)(A)(1), 8 Cal. Code Regs. 811040, states:

(3)(A)(1)The following overtime provisions aapplicable to employees 18 years of age
or over and to employees 16 or 17 yearagd who are not required by law to attend
school and are not otherwise prohibited by femm engaging in the subject work. Such
employees shall not be employed more thghtgi8) hours in any workday or more than
40 hours in any workweek unless the emplagaeives one and one-half (1 ¥2) times
such employee’s regular rate of pay fdrraurs worked over 40 hours in the workweek.
Eight (8) hours of labor cotitites a day’s work. Employment beyond eight (8) hours in
any workday or more than six (6) daysaimy workweek is permissible provided the
employee is compensated for such overtime at not less than:

One and one-half (1 ¥2) times the employeeigilar rate of pay foall hours worked in
excess of eight (8) hours up to and including 12 hours in any workday, and for the first
eight (8) hours worked on the seventh (dbgsecutive day of work a workweek; and

Double the employee’s regulateaof pay for all hours worked in excess of 12 hours in
any workday and for all hours worked incess of eight (8) hours on the seventh (7th)
consecutive day of work in a workweek.

56. California Labor Code 81194(a) provides as follows:

Notwithstanding any agreement to work fdesser wage, any employee receiving less
than the legal minimum wage or the legaertime compensation applicable to the
employee is entitled to recavia a civil actionthe unpaid balance of the full amount of
this minimum wage or overtime competisn, including interesthereon, reasonable
attorneys’ fees, and costs of sulit.

12



Case 3:06-cv-00267-GEB-TJB  Document 333-4  Filed 10/17/2008 Page 40 of 67

57. California Labor Code 8200 defines wages‘all amounts for labor performed by
employees of every description, @her the amount is fixed ascertained by the standard of
time, task, piece, commission basis or other pektsf calculation.” All such wages are subject
to California’s overtime requiremenisgcluding those set forth above.

58. Defendant’s across-the-board policy ofssliflying Plaintiffs and other similarly
situated Benefits Analysts as exempt fromdliertime pay entitlements has been unlawful. At
no relevant time have Plaintiffs and memberthefCalifornia Subcladseen primarily engaged
in exempt duties. Neither Paragraph 1 ofg&/®rder 4-2001 nor any other provision of law
has exempted Plaintiffs and other member8alffornia from the right to overtime pay

59.  Members of the California Subclass hawerked overtime hours for Defendant
without being paid overtime and doubletime piwms in violation of the California Labor
Code, IWC Wage Ordersd other applicable law.

60. Defendant has knowingly and willfully fiesed to perform its obligations to
compensate members the California Subdiaisall wages earned and all hours worked,
including premium wages for oxtene work. As a proximateesult of the aforementioned
violations, Defendant has damaged the Califosubclass in amounts to be determined
according to proof at time of trial.

61. Defendant is liable to Plaintiffs, on behaf the California Subclass, for the
unpaid overtime with interest thereon. Furthere) Plaintiffs are entitled to an award of
attorneys’ fees and casas set forth below.

62. Wherefore, Plaintiffs and the Californfubclass request refias hereinafter
provided.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure to Provide Meal and Rest Periods irViolation of California Labor Code 88226.7
and 512; IWC Wage Orders

63. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporateetforegoing paragraphs as though fully set

forth herein.
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64. Atall times relevant herein Califoiabor Code 8226.7 and the applicable IWC
wage orders required Defendantptovide meal and rest periottstheir employees. The IWC
wage orders prohibit employeir®om employing an employeerfaore than five (5) hours
without an off-duty meal period of not lesaththirty (30) minutesand from employing an
employee more than ten (10) hours per dayautlproviding the employee with a second meal
period of not less than thirty3@) minutes. Unless the employee is relieved of all duty during
the 30-minute meal period, the employee is constti&on duty” and the meal period is counted
as time worked under the applicable wage ordé@tse applicable wage orders also require
employers to provide employees ten (10) minofaset rest time peioir (4) hours or major
fraction thereof of work, and to pay employdesir full wages during those rest periods.

65. Under 8226.7(b) and the applicable wagéders, an employer who fails to
provide a required meal period must, as corspan, must pay the employee one hour of pay
at the employee’s regular rate of compensdboreach workday that the meal period was not
provided. Similarly, an employer must payeanployee denied a required rest period one hour
of pay at the employee’s regular rate of congagion for each workday that the rest period was
not provided.

66. During the applicable statute of limitatis period, Defendasifailed to provide
meal and rest periods to Plaifg and the California Subclass. As a result, Plaintiffs and
members of the California Subclass are enttitetthe relief provided b alifornia Labor Code
§226.7(b).

67. Defendants have knowingly and willfullyftesed to perform their obligations to
provide Plaintiffs and the Catifnia Subclass with meal angist periods as required by
California law. As a proximate result oetlaforementioned violations, Plaintiffs and the
California Subclass have been damaged in an amount according to proof at time of trial.

68. Defendants’ conduct described hereiolates California Labor Code §226.7 and
8512, and the applicable IWC Wa@eders. Therefore, Plaiffs and the California Subclass
are entitled to the relief praded in Labor Code 8226.7(b) and the applicable Wage Orders,
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restitution for the failure to prvide meal and rest periodsuplinterest, civil penalties,
attorneys’ fees, expenses and costs of sulit.

69. Wherefore, Plaintiffs and the CalifornGubclass request refias hereinafter
provided.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Unpaid Wages and Waiting Tme Penalties Pursuant taCalifornia Labor Code §8201-203

70.  Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporateetforegoing paragraphs as though fully set
forth herein.

71. Labor Code §201 provides:

If an employer discharges an employthe, wages earned and unpaid at the time of
discharge are due and payable immediately.

72. Labor Code §202 Provides:

If an employee not having a written comtréor a definite period quits his or her
employment, his or her wages shall becatune and payable not later than 72 hours
thereafter, unless the employee has given 72shan@vious notice of his or her intention
to quit, in which case the employee is entitle his or her wages the time of quitting.

73.  Members of the California Subclass h#ei Defendant’s employment within the
statutory period, at which time Defendant owlealse California Subclass members their earned
wages. As a result of Defendant’s failurgoy members of the California Subclass overtime
compensation for overtime hours worked and faitorprovide meal and rest period, Defendant
willfully refused and continues to refuse toyga members of the California Subclass all the
wages that were due and owing them uponiteation of employment. As a result of
Defendant’s actions, the California Subclass has suffered and continues to suffer substantial
losses, including lost earnings and interest.

74.  Defendant’s willful failure to pay California Subclass members the wages due and
owing constitutes a violation of California lhar Code 88201-202. As a result, Defendant is
liable to Plaintiffs, on behalf of the Californ&ubclass, for all unpaid wages that should have

been paid pursuant to Labor Code §8201-202.
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75. In addition, 8203 provides that an employge&ages will continue as a penalty up
to thirty (30) days from the time the wages weuve. Therefore, Plaintiffs, on behalf of the
California Subclass, are entitled tanpdties pursuant to Labor Code §203.

76.  Plaintiffs also are entitled to an awardadforneys’ fees and costs as set forth
below.

77. Wherefore, Plaintiffs and the Californfubclass request refias hereinafter

provided.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Violation of California Business and Professions Code §8172@®,seq.

78.  Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporateetforegoing paragraphs as though fully set
forth herein.

79.  California Business androfessions Code 8817280 seq(also referred to herein
as the “Unfair Business Practices Act” or “UQLprohibits unfair compétion in the form of
any unlawful, unfair or fraudeht business act or practice.

80. California Business and Professionsd€ 817204 allows a person injured by the
unfair business acts or practices to proseauwt®il action for violation of the UCL.

81. Labor Code 890.5(a) states it is the lpupolicy of Califomia to vigorously
enforce minimum labor standarisorder to ensure employeae not required to work under
substandard and unlawful conditioasd to protect employers who comply with the law from
those who attempt to gain competitive advanttgbe expense of their workers by failing to
comply with minimum labor standards.

82.  Beginning at an exact date unknown to RI#B) but at least sice the date four
(4) years prior to the filing ahis suit, Defendant has committed acts of unfair competition as
defined by the Unfair Business Practices Actehgaging in the unlawful, unfair and fraudulent

business practices and acts described in thisplaont, including, but not limited to violations

16



Case 3:06-cv-00267-GEB-TJB  Document 333-4  Filed 10/17/2008 Page 44 of 67

of California Labor Code §8201-203, and witibns of California Labor Code 882267, 510,
512, and 1194 and the IWC wage orders perigito overtime and meal and rest periods.

83. The violations of these laws and régjions, as well as of the fundamental
California public poliges protecting wages and discouragovertime labor underlying them,
serve as unlawful predicate acts and pracficepurposes of Business and Professions Code
§817200et. seq.

84. The acts and practices described abarestitute unfair, unlawful and fraudulent
business practices, and unfair competition, within the meaning of Business and Professions
Code 881720@t. seq in that, for the reasons set forthoae, said acts and practices violate
explicit provisions of the California Lab&ode and/or Wage Orders, including without
limitation Wage Order 4-2001. Defendant loasained a significant unfair competitive
advantage over law-abiding employers and cstitqrs, and engaged in unfair competition,
through its acts and practices of withholdingnfrthe California Subclass overtime wages for
overtime hours worked, as well as through its praaticfailing to provide meal and rest breaks.

85. As adirect and proximate resulttbe aforementioned acts and practices,
Plaintiffs and the Californiaubclass members have suffered a loss of money and property, in
the form of unpaid wages whiehme due and payable to them.

86. Business and Professions Code 817203 desvthat a court may make such
orders or judgments as may be necessapyaweent the use or employment by any person of
any practice which constitutes unfair competitibmunctive relief is necessary and appropriate
to prevent Defendant from repeating its urflaywwunfair and fraudulent business acts and
business practices alleged above.

87. Business and Professions Code 817203 prewidat the Court may restore to any
person in interest any money or property vihncay have been acquired by means of such
unfair competition. Plaintiffs and the Califorrgaibclass are entitled tosteution pursuant to
Business and Professions Code 817203 for all svagd payments unlawfully withheld from

employees during the four-year period ptio the filing of this Complaint.
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88.  California Business and Professionsd€ 817202 provides: “Notwithstanding
Section 3369 of the Civil Codspecific or preventive relighay be granted to enforce a
penalty, forfeiture, or penal law in a case of unfair competition.” Plaintiffs, on behalf of the
California Subclass, are entitled to enforce afil@pble penalty provisions of the California
Labor Code pursuant to Bugiss and Professions Code §17202.

89.  Plaintiffs’ success in this action will enfie important rights affecting the public
interest and in that regard Ritiffs sue on behalf of themselves as well as others similarly
situated. Plaintiffs and the California sulsdaeek and are entitled to unpaid wages,
declaratory and injunctive relief, and ather equitable remedies owing to them.

90. Plaintiffs herein take upon themsehagorcement of these laws and lawful
claims. There is a financial burden involvegursuing this action, ghaction is seeking to
vindicate a public rightand it would be againstéhnterests of justice to penalize Plaintiffs by
forcing them to pay attorneys’ fees from theowry in this action. Plaintiffs request an award
of attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses @untsto Code of CiviProcedure 8§ 1021.5 and as
otherwise permitted by statute.

91. Wherefore, Plaintiffs and the Californ@ubclass request refias hereinafter
provided.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure to Pay Overtime Wages in Violation of
Connecticut General Statutes 88 31-58t seq.8831-76et seq

92.  Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporateetforegoing paragraphs as though fully set
forth herein.

93. The Connecticut Minimum Waggct, Conn. Gen Stat §31-%8 seq. provides in
part that “[a]Jny employer who pays or agreepdg to an employee less than the minimum fair
wage or overtime wage shall be deemed inafioh of the provisions of this part.” Conn. Gen.

Stat. § 31-60(a).
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94. Conn. Gen. Stat. 8 31-76c, further states

No employer, except as otherwise providecehe shall employ any of his employees for
a workweek longer than forty hours, unlesshsamployee receives remuneration for his
employment in excess of the hours above $jgelcat a rate not less than one and one-
half times the regular rate at which he is employed.

95. Pursuant to Connecticutia Conn. Gen. Stat. 831-68:

If any employee is paid by his employer less than the minimum fair wage or overtime
wage to which he is entitled under sens 31-58, 31-59 and 30 or by virtue of a
minimum fair wage order he may recoveraigivil action, twice théull amount of such
minimum wage less any amount actually pai¢him by the employer, with costs and
such reasonable attorney's fees as beagllowed by the court, and any agreement
between him and his employer to work for léssn such minimum fair wage or overtime
wage shall be no defense to such action...”

96. Defendant’s across-the-board policy ofsslidlying Plaintiffs and other similarly
situated Benefits Analysts as exempt fromdliertime pay entitlements has been unlawful. At
no relevant time have Plaintiffs and membafrthe Connecticut Sulass been primarily
engaged in exempt duties or exempt under telLld@or Standards AcConnecticut wage and
hour law or any other provision of law.

97. Members of the Connecticut Subclasséaorked overtime hours for Defendant
without being paid overtime premiums in violatiof the Connecticut labor law. Defendant has
knowingly and willfully refusedo perform its obligations toompensate the Connecticut
Subclass for overtime work atelapplicable overtime rate. Asproximate result of the
aforementioned violations, Defendant has darmddge Connecticut Subclass in amounts to be
determined according to proof at time of trial.

98. Defendant is liable to Plaintiffs, on behaffthe Connecticut Subclass, for twice
the full amount of unpaid overtime with interestrion. Furthermore, Phdiffs are entitled to
an award of attorneys’ feesid costs as set forth below.

99.  Wherefore, Plaintiffs and the Connecti@uibclass request relief as hereinafter

provided.
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SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure to Pay Timely Wages in Violationof Connecticut General Statutes 8831-7 &t seq.

100. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporateetforegoing paragraphs as though fully set
forth herein.

101. Under Connecticut wage and howv|a&Conn. Gen. Stat. 831-71b(a), “[e]ach
employer, by himself, his agent or represéméa shall pay weekly all moneys due each
employee on a regular pay day, designated warck by the employer, in cash, by negotiable
checks or, upon an employee's written request, dgitdo such employee's account in any bank
which has agreed with the employer to accept such wage deposits.” An employer may be
permitted by the Commissioner of Labor “to e$isdbregular pay days less frequently than
weekly, provided each employee affected shalpdne in full at least once in each calendar
month on a regularly established sthie.” Conn. Gen. Stat § 31-71..

102. Further, Connecticut law, Con@en. Stat § 31-71c provides that:

(a) Whenever an employee voluntarily teraigs his employment, the employer shall
pay the employee's wages in full not lateartlthe next regular pay day, as designated
under section 31-71b, either through thgutar payment channels or by mail.

(b) Whenever an employer discharges an employee, the employer shall pay the
employee's wages in full not later than theibess day next succeeding the date of such
discharge.

(c) When work of any employee is suspended essult of a labor dispute, or when an
employee for any reason is laid off, thegoyer shall pay in full to such employee the

wages earned by him not later than the megtlar pay day, as designated under section
31-71b.

103. Under Connecticut Law, Conn. Gen. S8t-71a(2), the term “employee”
includes any person suffered or permitted tokamy an employer.” Under Connecticut Law,
Conn. Gen. Stat §31-71a(3), theme“wages™ means compensan for labor or services
rendered by an employee, whether the amouhetisrmined on a time, task, piece, commission
or other basis of calculation.”

104. Pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. 831-7%/]Hen any employer fails to pay an

employee wages in accordance with the provisadrsections 31-71a to 31-71i, inclusive, or
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fails to compensate an employee in accordanttesection 31-76k ... such employee or labor
organization may recover, in avitiaction, twice the full amount cfuch wages, with costs and
such reasonable attorney's fees as mayltwwed by the court, and any agreement between him
and his employer for payment of wages other mgpecified in said sections shall be no

defense to such action ....”

C.G.S.A. §31-71a.

105. Due to Defendant’s policy and practicemoisclassifying Benefits Analysts as
exempt from the overtime requirementGanecticut law and denial of overtime
compensation for overtime hours worked, Defendiastfailed to timely pay its employees all
wages due and owing to them during employment and upon termination or quit.

106. Plaintiffs and the Connecticut Subclase therefore entitled to twice the full
amount of such unpaid wagesdaattorneys’ fees and costs.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure to Pay Overtime Wages in Violaion of lllinois Minimum Wage Law
820 ILCS 105/4a

107. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporateetforegoing paragraphs as though fully set
forth herein.
108. Section 4a(1) of the lllimis Minimum Wage Law, 820 ILCS 105/4a(1), provides

as follows:

Except as otherwise providedtims Section, no employer shall
employ any of his employees for a workweek of more than 40
hours unless such employee receives compensation for his
employment in excess of the hourggsified at a rate not less than
1 %% times the regular rate at which he employed....

109. Section 12 of the lllinois Minimum Wadeaw, 820 ILCS 105/12(a), provides, in

part, as follows:
If any employee is paid by his employer less than the wage to
which he is entitled under the preians of this Act, the employee
may recover in a civil action trmount of any such underpayment
together with costs and such reasonable attorney’s fees as may be
allowed by the Court, and damages of 2% of the amount of any
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such underpayments for each month following the date of payment
during which such underpayments remain unpaid...

110. lllinois Minimum Wage Law, 820 ICS 105/3(b) defines wages as
“compensation due to an employee by reason of his employment ...” All such wages are
subject to lllinois’ overtime requiremes, including those set forth above.

111. Defendant’s across-the-board policy adsgifying Plaintiff and other similarly
situated Benefits Analysts as exempt from the overtime pay requirements of Illinois law has
been unlawful. At no relevant time have Btdf and the lllinois Subclass been primarily
engaged in exempt duties. No provision @f lzas exempted Plaintiffs and other lllinois
Subclass members from the right to overtime pay.

112. Members of the lllinois Subclass have worked overtime hours for Defendant
without being paid overtime premiums in \atbn of the lllinois Minimum Wage Law and
other applicable law.

113. Defendant has not fulfilled its obligatiots compensate the lllinois Subclass for
all wages earned and all howverked, including premium wages for overtime work. As a
result of the aforementionedolations, Defendant has damadkd Illinois Subclass in amounts
to be determined according to proof at tiaferial, but in an amount in excess of the
jurisdictional requirements of this Court.

114. Defendant is liable to Plaintiffs and tHenois Subclass, for the unpaid overtime
with interest thereon. Defendant is also liabl®laintiffs and the lllinois Subclass for damages
of 2% of the unpaid wages for each month felloy the date of underpayment. Furthermore,
Plaintiffs are entitled to an asd of reasonable attorneys’ fesasd costs as set forth below.

115. Wherefore, Plaintiffs and the lllinois Subclass request relief as hereinafter

provided.
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NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure to Pay Overtime in Violation of the New Jersey Wage Payment Law

116. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporateetforegoing paragraphs as though fully set
forth herein.

117. At all relevant times, Plaintiffs and tilmembers of the New Jersey Subclass were
employed by the Defendants within the meaning of the NJWPL.

118. Defendant willfully violated Plaintiffs’ rights and the rights of the members of the
New Jersey Subclass, by failing to pay thenrtiwve compensation at rates not less than one
and one-half times the regular rate of paydach hour worked in excess of 40 hours in a
workweek, in violation of the NJWPL.

119. The Defendant’'s NJWPL violations hawaused Plaintiffs and the members of
the New Jersey Subclass, irreparable hamwfach there is no adgiate remedy at law.

120. Due to the Defendant’s NJWPL violatiomdaintiffs and the members of the New
Jersey Subclass are entitled@gover from Defendants,din unpaid overtime compensation,
damages for unreasonably delayed payment of waggspnable attorneyies, and costs and

disbursements of the action, under NJWPL.

TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure to Pay Overtime Wages in Violation of New York Labor Law,
N.Y. Labor Law 88190,et seq.;88650et seq, 12 NYCRR 142.2.2¢t seq.

121. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporateetforegoing paragraphs as though fully set
forth herein.

122. At all times relevant to this action,drhtiffs and the New York Subclass were
employed by Defendant within the meagpiof the New York Labor Law 88190, 651(5).

123. New York Labor Law Section 191(1)(d) provides that:

Every employer shall pay wages in aacance with the following provisions:

*k%k

d. Clerical and other worker.--A clerical aather worker shall be paid the wages earned
in accordance with the agreed terms of eyplent, but not less frequently than semi-
monthly, on regular pay days desiggwitn advance by the employer.
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124. The implementing regulations ofeiNew York Labor Law, 12 NYCRR 142.2,

further state that:

An employer shall pay an employee for overtime at a wage rate of one and one-half times
the employee's regular rate in the manmer methods provided in and subject to the
exemptions of sections 7 and 13 of 29 U.S.C.&(deq.the Fair Labor Standards Act of
1938, as amended; provided, however, thaei@mptions set forth in section 13(a)(2)

and (4) shall not apply....”

125. New York Labor Law 88198 and 651 allow employees to recover any unpaid
wages or underpayments of wages to which eygas are entitled in@vil action, together
with costs and reasonable attorney’s fees.

126. Defendant’s across-the-board policy ofssifying Plaintiffs and other similarly
situated Benefits Analysts as exempt fromdliertime pay entitlements has been unlawful. At
no relevant time have Plaintifesnd the New York subclass been primarily engaged in exempt
duties. Neither the FLSA, the relevant prous@f the New York Labor Law or its supporting
regulations, nor any other preion of law has exempted Plaintiffs and other New York
subclass members from theight to overtime pay.

127. Members of the New York Subclass haverked overtime hours for Defendant
without being paid overtime premiums at @rel one-half times their regular rates the in
violation of New York labor laws anggulations, and other applicable law.

128. Defendant has knowingly and willfully fiesed to perform its obligations to
compensate the New York Subclass for aljesearned and all hours worked, including
premium wages for overtime work. As a proxtmeesult of the aforementioned violations,
Defendant has damaged the New York Subclass in amounts to be determined according to proof
at time of trial.

129. Defendant is liable to Plaintiffs and the New York Subclass for the unpaid
regular and overtime wages wititerest thereon as providiéor in N.Y. Labor Law 88 198,
663(1).

130. Furthermore, Plaintiffs are entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees and costs as set

forth below.
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131. Wherefore, Plaintiffs and the New Yo8ubclass request refias hereinafter
provided.
ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Failure to Pay Overtime Wages in Violaion of Pennsylvania Wage Payment and
Collection Act and Pennsylvania Minimum Wage Act

132. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporateetforegoing paragraphs as though fully set
forth herein.

133. Pursuant to the Pennsylvania WaggrRant and Collection Law, 43 P.S. § 260.3,
Defendant is obligated to pall the wages due to its employees.

134. Pursuant to the Pennsylvania Mimim Wage Act, 43 P.S. 8333.104(c), an
employee shall be paid for overtime at nesl¢han one and one-half times the employee’s
regular rate for hours worked in exseof forty hours in a workweek.

135. Pennsylvania law further provides that eaygles may recover in a civil action all
unpaid wages plus interest, and where wagesineumgaid for thirty days beyond the regularly
scheduled payday, “liquidated damages in the amaiumtenty-five percenof the total amount
of wages due, or five hundred dollars, whiatreis greater,” as well as court costs and
reasonable attorneys’ fees. 43 P.S. 88 260.9a, 260.10, 333.113

136. Members of the Pennsylvania Sulssdnave worked overtime hours for
Defendant without being paid avene premiums at one and onaHlhtimes their regular rates
in violation of Pennsylvania Mimum Wage Law, supporting regiions, and other applicable
law.

137. Defendant has violated Pennsylvania lawdiling to pay Plaintiffs and similarly
situated employees for all compensable tand by failing to pay Plaintiffs and similarly
situated employees for work time, including oirad, at the established rate. Defendant has
knowingly and willfully refusedo perform its obligations toompensate the Pennsylvania

Subclass for all wages earned and all hounked including premion wages for overtime
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work in violation of Pennsylvania WageyPaent and Collection Law, 43 P.S. § 260.3, et seq.,
and Pennsylvania MinimuWage Law, 13 P.S. § 333.161seq.

138. Defendant is liable to Plaintiffs artde Pennsylvania Sulass for the unpaid
regular and overtime wages witherest thereon, liquidated damagas well as attorneys’ fees
and costs as set forth below.

139. Wherefore, Plaintiffs and the Pennsyhafubclass request relief as hereinafter

provided.

TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Failure to Pay Overtime Wages in Violation of Wisconsin Statutes Annotated 88
103.01et seq.,and Chapter DWD 274 of the Wsconsin Administrative Code

140. Plaintiffsre-allege and incorporate the fgoeng paragraphs as though fully set
forth herein.

141. Atall times relevant to this action,dtiffs and the Wisconsin Subclass were
employed by Defendant within the meanofghe Wisconsin wage and hour laws and
implementing regulations, W.S.A 88 103.025, 104.01(2).

142. Pursuant to W.S.A. 109.03 (1), Defendetequired to pay all wages earned by
and due to its employees at last monthly.

143. Under Wisconsin law, employees shalldzd for overtime at not less than one
and one-half times the employeeégular rate for hours worked in excess of forty hours in a
workweek. Wis. Admin. Code § DWD 274.Gt,seq.

144. Members of the Wisconsin Subclass have worked overtime hours for Defendant
without being paid overtime premiums at one and-half times their regular rates in violation
of Wisconsin statutes, supporting regfions, and other applicable laws.

145. Defendant has knowingly and willfully fiesed to perform its obligations to
compensate the Wisconsin subclass fowalljes earned and all hours worked, including

premium wages for overtime work in violation of Wisconsin law.
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146. Defendant is liable to Plaintiffs andethVisconsin Subclass for the unpaid regular
and overtime wages with interesethon, as well as attorneys’ fessd costs as set forth below,
pursuant to W.S.A 8109.03(5)-(6)

147. Defendant is further liable to Plaintiffsr civil penalties in the amount of up to
than 50% of the amount of wages due anpaid pursuant to W.S.A. 8109.11(2)(a).

148. Wherefore, Plaintiffs and the Wiscon$uabclass request relief as hereinafter
provided.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Wherefore, Plaintiffs, on behalf of themsehagsl the class, pray for relief as follows:

1. For an order certifying this case asollective actin and class action,
certifying the Federal Subclass andtstlaw subclasses, and appointing
Plaintiffs as the representatives of the subclasses;

2. Damages and restitution according togdrat trial for all unpaid wages
according to proof, witlinterest thereon;

3. For preliminary, permanent and matatg injunctive relief prohibiting
Defendant, its officers, agents andthtbse acting in concert with Defendant,
from committing in the future thosaolations of law herein alleged;

4. For an equitable accounting to ideptifocate and restore to all current and
former employees the wages trag due, with interest thereon;

5. For an order finding and declaring tiixfendant’s acts, policies and practices
in failing to pay earned wages wheue were willful, and awarding all
applicable state law civil penaltiesRtaintiffs and the state law subclasses;

6. For an order awarding liguidated damages in accordance with the FLSA and
applicable state laws;

7. Pre-judgment and post-judgmentdrest, as provided by law;

8. For an award of reasonable attorsidges and costs of suit; and
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9. For such other and further legal argpligable relief as this Court deems

necessary, just and proper.

Respectfully Submitted,

Date: October __ , 2008 SCHNEIDER WALLACE
COTTRELL BRAYTON KONECKY LLP
GRADY, SCHNEIDER & NEWMAN, LLP
KLAFTER OLSEN LESSER LLP
BERGER & GOTTLIEB

Camilla L. Roberson

28



Case 3:06-cv-00267-GEB-TJB  Document 333-4  Filed 10/17/2008 Page 56 of 67

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves and fiteposed classes, hbyedemand a jury trial

on all claims and issues raisedhe Complaint for which Platiffs and the proposed classes
are entitled to a jury.

Respectfully Submitted,

Date: August 20, 2008 SCHNEIDER WALLACE
COTTRELL BRAYTON KONECKY LLP
GRADY, SCHNEIDER & NEWMAN, LLP
KLAFTER OLSEN LESSER LLP
BERGER & GOTTLIEB

Camilla L. Roberson
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